
 

         February 19, 2014 

Wayne RESA Paper Supplies    

RFP-WR-615121613 

 

Responses to Bidder Questions 

 

The following questions were received regarding solicitation WR-

615121613- Paper Supplies.  The responses to the questions are italicized. 

 

QUESTION 1: In the RFP in section 1.7 Minimum Mandatory Requirement 

the last two bullets state the following,  

• Supplier will be required to receive and transmit all order 

information via cxml 

• Supplier will be required to present all product information in 
electronic catalogs; CoPro+ will assist with all catalog and technology 

requirements. 
 

What section of the response should the requirements be confirmed that 
we will meet the requirements as stated? 

 

ANSWER to Q1:  Section 5.2 Ordering and Fill Rate.  The requirements 
described above should be confirmed that they will be complied within 

Section 5.2 of the Vendor’s/Supplier’s response. 

 

QUESTION 2:  In the RFP Section 3.5.2 it say’s that the “Proposer will be 

evaluated on its pricing for all core items.” It also states in the same 
section, “The Proposer will be evaluated on the following additional 

discounts; Quick Payment Discounts, Volume/Tiered Discounts/Rebates/ – 

Agency Usage (Volume), Volume/Tiered Discounts/Rebates/ – Average 
Order Size, e-Commerce Discounts/Rebates/Admin Fees, Additional 

Discounts/Rebates/Admin Fees.”  Can you provide direction on what is 

weighted more the pricing or the discounts? 



 

 

 

 

ANSWER to Q2:  The main objective of the bid is to capture the best 

value for the ordering entity.  In evaluating the proposal we will focus on 
the line item pricing in addition to any additional discounts that incentivize 

the ordering entity.  Examples would be prompt payment discounts and 
average order sizes.  When evaluating the pricing proposal we will be 

indexing against other public consortium pricing in the market, like the 

MiDEAL program.   

Reminder that it is the intent to market this Agreement to other 

local public entities- counties, cities, townships and schools.   

 

Q3.  Does you RFP require delivery to members throughout the State of 

Michigan or are we able to bid by region?  

 

 

ANSWER to Q3:  No the RFP does not require delivery to members 
throughout the State of Michigan.  As indicated in Section 1.5 of the 

Solicitation, Titled, Final Agreement Award Determination, it states the 

following: 

 

“Wayne RESA reserves the right to make one total award, one award for each 
section, multiple awards, or a combination of awards, and to exercise its 
judgment concerning the selection of one or more proposals, the terms of any 
resultant agreement(s), and the determination of which, if any, proposal(s) 
best serves the interests of Wayne RESA. 

Additionally, participation in the state program is not a mandatory 
component or requirement in this solicitation in order for a Proposer to 
receive an award. Proposers have the option to be considered for a local 
agreement only, or for both a local and state program agreement.”  

 

It is the desire to have a statewide program offering but bidding by region 

is acceptable. 

 



 

 

 
QUESTION 4:  If we are able to submit a bid by region how do we know 

what regions are available in Michigan and how should we note them in our 
proposal?  

 
 

ANSWER to Q4:  Please denote regions as stated below: 
 

Region 1 –  Upper Peninsula (15 counties) 
Region 2 –  Northwest Region (Emmet, Charlevoix, Antrim, Leelanau, 

Kalkaska, Grand Traverse, Benzie, Manistee, Wexford and 

Missaukee 
Region 3 -  Northeast Region (Cheboygan, Presque Isle, Otsego, 

Montmorency, Alpena, Alcona, Oscoda, Crawford, Roscommon, 
Ogemaw and Iosco  

Region 4 -  West Michigan Region (Mason, Lake, Osceola, Mecosta, 
Newaygo, Oceana, Muskegon, Montcalm, Ottawa, Kent, Ionia, 

Allegan & Barry 
Region 5 -  East Central Region (Clare, Gladwin, Arenac, Bay, Midland,  

Isabella, Gratiot and Saginaw 
Region 6 -  East Michigan Region (Shiawassee, Genesee, Lapeer, Tuscola, 

Huron, Sanilac and St. Clair 
Region 7 -  South Central Region (Clinton, Eaton & Ingham) 

Region 8 -  Southwest Region (Van Buren, Kalamazoo, Calhoun, Berrien, 
Cass, St. Joseph & Branch) 

Region 9 -  Southeast Region (Jackson, Hillsdale, Livingston, Washtenaw, 
 Lenawee & Monroe) 

Region 10 – Detroit Metro Region (Oakland, Wayne & Macomb) 

 
 

 
QUESTION 5:  Will the papers listed in your proposal be ordered by the 

ream or in full case lots of the same product?   
 

ANSWER to Q5:  This is a Request for Proposal therefore we are open to 
various options and offerings in your proposal.  Please consider providing  

multiple ordering options if your company has the capability.  School  
Districts and public entities have various approaches to meeting their 

needs so various options should be taken into consideration. 
 

 



 
 

QUESTION 6:  What is the acceptable time frame for delivering orders  
after receipt of PO?  

 
ANSWER to Q6:  This is a Request for Proposal therefore we are open to 

considering various time frames based upon shipping destination and order 
size.  Please be aware of the industry standards when providing time 

frames. 
 

 
 

QUESTION 7:  What is the acceptable minimum per order?   

 
ANSWER to Q7:  This is a Request for Proposal therefore we are open to 

considering options provided in your proposal.  In previous 
agreements minimum order standards have ranges from $0 to $75.  

Order sizes have also been established based on shipping 
destinations.   

 
 

   
QUESTION 8:  Will procurement card be used with the bulk of the 

orders placed?   
 

ANSWER to Q8:  There is no stated requirement in the solicitation.   

Various methods of payment will be accepted, such as direct voucher and  
p-card.  This is a Request for Proposal therefore we are open to 

considering options that may incent entities to utilize p-cards for the 
bulk of their purchases.  

 
 

QUESTION 9:  What is the typical administrative fee percentage?   
 

ANSWER to Q9:  The Administrative Fee is a fee assess usage and 
access fees for the cooperative contract. Fees on public consortium  

contracts have ranged from 1% to 6%.  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
QUESTION 10:  How many members does CoPro+ have in 

Michigan?  

 
ANSWER to Q10:  CoPro+ is a new statewide consortium shared services  

solution offered by Michigan Association of Counties.  Any Michigan public 
entity and Michigan non-profit organization is a potential member of the  

CoPro+ program.  Currently there are over 35 members.   
 
 
QUESTION 11:  Approximately how many delivery locations are 

there?   
 

ANSWER to Q11:  There are approximately 205 delivery locations 
with the current membership.  Additional members will increase the 

number of delivery locations.   
 
QUESTION 12:  Do you want a truckload price for your members?   

 
ANSWER to Q12:  Yes.  Please provide truckload pricing as well.   

 

 
QUESTION 13:  Do you have a bid tabulation from the last 

contract?   
 

ANSWER to Q13:  Please see attached excel spreadsheet from 2012,  
which is when Wayne RESA went out last for paper supplies.    

 
 

QUESTION 14:  Do you have the number of cases for each item 
purchased last year?   

 
 

ANSWER to Q14:  No that information is not readily available.  Wayne 
RESA in 2013/14 school year has used the Global Office Solutions Master  

Agreement to provide paper supplies.  There is very low utilization of the  

Master Agreement for paper supplies and is the key reason why we decided  
to go back out for bid on this category.   

 
 
 


